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2 0 2 0 : A  Y E A R  O F  U N P R E C E D E N T E D  S E R V I C E

M A R S  B A N K  P P P  L O A N  I M P A C T

                         

“Bank staff were heroic  in  helping secure a  PPP loan 
in  the 11th hour.  Thank you, I  can now sleep at night!”

PPP Loans            184
Loans Funded      $15.5M
Jobs Saved            1,700+

Mars Bank is committed to serving its community. Every year 

this takes multiple forms, from providing financial and 

banking products to supporting local charitable efforts. In 

2020, the bank’s service took on new forms that were 

unexpected and challenged the bank’s officers and staff. The 

bank’s response to the many needs that resulted from 

COVID-19 was swift, effective, and continues as the pandemic 

and its economic impact remains. 

Service: Remaining Open
As the potential severity of the pandemic became evident in 

mid-March, the bank instituted its prepared and practiced 

emergency response plan. The bank never closed, serving 

customers through the branch system and putting in place 

additional resources regarding remote banking options while 

also increasing access and hours of the telephone customer 

service helpline. Our essential front-line workers continued to 

provide personal service in the banking centers including loan 

closings, account opening, and providing access to safe 

deposit boxes. Regular transactions were conducted via 

drive-thru banking. Safety and cleanliness protocols were put 

in place to protect customers and banking center staff.

Safety: Protecting Staff while Maintaining Service
In response to the Pennsylvania Department of Health and 

Center for Disease Control guidelines, the bank put protocols 

in place for retail locations, and converted all administrative 

operations to remote work. The bank staff made the 

transition in just a few days and developed new processes to 

complete administrative and customer support work while 

maintaining all regulatory requirements. Throughout the rest 

of 2020, mortgage, commercial banking, and administrative 

staff worked from home while visiting bank offices only for 

critical activities. 

Assistance: Helping Customers in Need
The bank quickly developed assistance programs for both 

consumer and commercial customers. Customers were 

encouraged to contact the bank if they were facing financial 

hardship due to the economic impact resulting from the 

pandemic. Fee waivers, loan term adjustments, suspension of 

foreclosures, and other assistance were available to consumer 

customers in need. Similar assistance was offered to business 

customers in addition to providing information and helping 

apply for government loan and grant programs. The bank 

participated in the Paycheck Protection Program, assisting 

businesses by reviewing, approving, and submitting PPP loan 

applications to the Small Business Administration portal.

Support: Helping Communities in Need
Every year Mars Bank provides financial and volunteer 

support for charitable, civic, and economic development 

organizations that serve our communities. In response to the 

emergency needs that arose in 2020, the bank increased its 

support to local organizations and initiatives that focus on 

providing food, shelter, and clothing. The bank used its 

communications channels to promote both local donation 

efforts, food distribution days, and other support available to 

those in need. 
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Growth: New Location, Record Loan Numbers
Despite the pandemic, the bank served its customers 

effectively. The bank opened its Grove City Banking Center in 

January 2020. The reception in Grove City was strong, and the 

retail and commercial team found ways to engage the 

community and begin building customer relationships. In 

Grove City and throughout the bank’s footprint, low interest 

rates meant mortgage and home equity loan volume was 

high. The bank closed more loans in 2020 than any year in 

memory. Again, working through the issues of COVID-19, 

both PPP loans and mortgage and home equity loans were 

processed and closed safely.

2020: Serving Through the Challenges
Throughout this year, Mars Bank fulfilled its mission to serve 

its customers, community, shareholders, and staff. Through 

the challenges of the pandemic, the bank persevered, 

adapting to remain open, safely serving customers in person, 

and enhancing resources and support to customers using 

remote banking tools. Bank staff worked diligently to get 

customers needed assistance whether in the form of informa-

tion, adjusted terms, or a PPP loan. The bank responded to the 

hardships that the pandemic created, targeting time and 

money to the emergency needs of our neighbors. Through it 

all, the bank continued to safely and securely offer financial 

products, services, and information, resulting in growth in 

loans and deposits. 

Service is a word that is easy to claim, but hard to fulfill. In 

2020, Mars Bank showed the impact a community bank 

produces when it stays focused on serving people and organi-

zations. No matter the challenges, the bank continues to play 

an important role in the communities in which we live, work, 

and serve.
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Message to Shareholders

INTRODUCTION
The story of Mars Bank in 2020 revolves around the impact of, and our response to, COVID-19. Our success in
this unforgettable year is directly related to the dedication, hard work, and leadership of the board, management
team, and staff of the bank. While the results of this year are told in financial terms throughout this report, the
bank’s true impact on its customers and communities, through the exceptional efforts of our staff, go far beyond
the numbers. In this year of unprecedented service, we worked diligently to remain open and operating, assisting
customers, supporting our communities, and keeping our staff safe and effective in their jobs.

KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Banks are essential to the health and well-being of our nation’s economy. To the customers and communities we
serve, Mars Bank plays a consequential role. That was never more evident than in the days and weeks following
the initial state-wide shutdown due to the pandemic. The bank remained open and operating and added resources
and access for customers who were depending on us to meet their banking needs and provide extra help in tran-
sitioning to alternative delivery channels.

Open and Operating
Following the Pennsylvania Department of Health and Center for Disease Control guidelines, the bank put proto-
cols in place at its retail locations to provide social distancing, additional cleaning and disinfecting, signage, and
physical barriers. The bank never closed and was always available to customers. We added web resources and
telephone support for customers new to remote banking tools such as mobile and ATM deposits, online bill pay,
telephone banking, and other tools. Use of the mobile banking app increased by 15% between March and
December. Online banking use increased by 10% and online bill pay by 6%. These higher usage levels continue as
customers become accustomed to using these tools for everyday transactions.

Customer Assistance
While remaining open for all customers was the top priority in 2020, supporting customers negatively impacted
by the economic downturn caused by the pandemic was and continues to be critically important. With the set-
backs of 2020, many individuals and businesses found themselves unexpectedly under challenging circumstances.
The bank developed assistance programs for both consumer and commercial customers that included:

• Loan Assistance - interest-only programs, payment deferrals, and suspension of late fees, foreclosures, and
repossessions

• Fees - waiving or refunding fees for stop payment, account overdraft, account research, and account low
balance

• Penalties - waiving of early withdrawal penalties for time deposits

• Debit Cards - rush card replacement with no fees

The bank managed these programs on a case-by-case basis; customers were encouraged to discuss their situation
with their banking center manager, commercial banking officer, or loan/deposit operations team member.

Paycheck Protection Program
As an approved SBA lender, Mars Bank is participating in the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). We are help-
ing business customers understand and apply for PPP loans. In round one, the bank funded 184 loans totaling
$15.5 million which resulted in over 1,740 jobs saved by businesses in our community. The bank continues to
accept PPP loan applications through phase two of the program. In addition, we are actively processing applica-
tions for forgiveness. The SBA submission window and evolving nature of the program has created an enormous
amount of work for the commercial banking, credit administration, and loan operations teams. Their efforts were
a prime example of the selfless work and focus on service our staff exemplified throughout 2020. We also provided
information about, and links to, other federal, state, and county business assistance programs.
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Community Assistance
Mars Bank is committed to supporting the needs of the communities we serve. Our management and staff are
involved with many charitable, service, and civic organizations, events, and activities each year. In 2020, the pan-
demic resulted in a much greater focus on supporting emergency needs: food, shelter, and safety. In particular, the
bank increased its financial support for local food programs, including food banks, targeted food distribution
programs, and funding meals at a low-income senior apartment community near the bank’s headquarters. The
bank also sponsored staff and customer initiatives, including virtual walk-a-thons and food drives in our banking
centers. We expect this need to continue as the pandemic stretches into 2021.

Process Improvements
As mentioned, we continued to operate throughout the pandemic. This was only possible due to our staff tirelessly
working through the many issues encountered. The retail team, aided by facilities management and human
resources, quickly restructured how the branch system operated. Meanwhile, operations and back-office functions
moved to work-from-home flawlessly, with scheduled times for work requiring office visits. While the bank con-
tinually looks to improve how it operates, the response to the pandemic afforded the opportunity to analyze every
aspect of the bank’s processes. As technology and equipment were provided to ensure secure work-from-home
configurations, new ways to process and manage the administrative tasks of the bank were implemented. This
opportunity continues as remote teams and on-site staff develop processes that streamline operations while main-
taining full governance and compliance requirements.

New Location, Record Loans, and Community Recognition
In this letter last year, we celebrated the grand opening of the Grove City banking center. It opened two months
before the pandemic forced the change in operating procedures. Despite this, the Grove City location continued to
operate, reach out to prospects, stayed involved in the community, and brought in consumer and commercial
business.

2020 also saw a very successful year in mortgage and home equity refinance loans. Due to low interest rates, the
demand for mortgage loans was high throughout the year. Home equity refinance specials also drove a high volume
of business to the bank. The mortgage team, aided by retail staff, worked very hard to meet the demand and as a
result, the bank closed more mortgage purchase and refinance loans than any year in memory.

We were also gratified by the recognition that Mars Bank was named Best Bank and Best Mortgage Lender by the
readers of the Cranberry Eagle newspaper. This community recognition is even more appreciated given the diffi-
culty of maintaining high service levels throughout the pandemic. We thank our customers for their loyalty and
support.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Net income for the current year totaled $1,985,000 as compared to $1,833,000 for the same period in the prior
year, an increase of $152,000 or 8.3%. For 2020, the Company generated earnings per share of $24.81, return on
average assets of 0.45% and return on average equity of 5.03%.

The key items impacting our financial performance were as follows:

Interest income totaled $12,686,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $13,198,000
for the same twelve-month period in 2019, a decrease of $512,000. This was primarily due to a decrease in interest
income on loans of $64,000, decreases in interest income on interest-bearing deposits of $257,000 and a decrease
in interest income on securities of $191,000. The decrease in interest income on loans, interest-bearing deposits
with banks, and investment securities was primarily related to lower yields earned which resulted from the
material decreases in the Federal Funds rate over the past year.

Interest expense totaled $1,572,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $2,192,000
for the same twelve-month period in 2019, a decrease of $620,000. The two components of this decrease in inter-
est expense were lower deposit costs of $574,000 and lower borrowings costs of $46,000. The decrease in deposit
costs was primarily related to lower yields paid on deposits resulting from market rate decreases, and the reduc-
tion in borrowing costs related to reduced bank borrowings outstanding.
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As a result, net interest income increased by $107,000 or 1.0% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as
compared to the same period in 2019.

The net interest spread, and net interest margin were 2.57% and 2.75% for the twelve months ended December 31,
2020, respectively, as compared to 2.72% and 2.98% for the same period in the prior year.

Loans outstanding increased by $11.7 million, or 4.3% to $281.8 million at December 31, 2020, as compared to
$270.1 million at December 31, 2019. This increase was primarily related to the Company’s participation in the
Federal Payroll Protection Program. Deposits increased by $61.7 million, or 17.5% to $414.2 million at
December 31, 2020, as compared to $352.5 million at December 31, 2019.

The provision for loan losses totaled $338,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as compared to a
$15,000 provision for the same period in the prior year. The Company’s credit quality position at December 31,
2020, remained very strong as evidenced by delinquencies at 0.03% of total loans, nonaccrual loans at 0.38% of
total loans, and the allowance for loan losses at 1.03% of total loans. Without the PPP loans, which are 100%
secured by the Small Business Administration, the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2020 was 1.08% of
total loans.

Non-interest income increased by $1,111,000 or 47.4% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as com-
pared to the same period in 2019. The primary reasons for this increase were higher residential mortgage sale and
processing income of $994,000, realized gains on investment security sales of $152,000 and insurance services
income of $95,000. These increases were partially offset by lower Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB)
stock dividends of $49,000 and lower service charges on deposits of $47,000.

Non-interest expense increased by $772,000 or 6.9% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as com-
pared to the same period in 2019, primarily related to increases in salaries of $165,000 and mortgage origination
commissions paid of $298,000, consulting expense of $192,000, FHLB fixed rate borrowings prepayment penalty
expense of $147,000, higher FDIC costs of $74,000, equipment expense of $67,000, and computer services expense
of $60,000. These increases were partially offset by lower travel expense of $63,000, advertising expense of
$60,000, occupancy costs of $49,000, and education expense of $37,000.

The Company recognized income tax expense of $251,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, as
compared to $280,000 for the same period in the prior year.

YEAR AHEAD
The pandemic and the resulting economic impact will continue to be the main focus of Mars Bank in 2021. Work-
ing to provide services to our customers without interruption through in-person and drive-thru interactions as
well as via remote banking technologies will be our first priority. While building digital capabilities has been
important for many years, the pandemic reinforced the need to provide our customers the ability to bank when,
where, and how they choose. We are focusing on continually improving our digital tools and will implement sev-
eral improved platforms in 2021 and 2022. We will also continue to add to customer self-service online resources
and expand access to the customer service telephone helpline. Both proved vital to supporting customers using
remote banking tools for the first time in 2020.

We are also committed to making our physical plant accommodating to the changing needs of our customers. In
2021 the Cranberry banking center, which also houses our mortgage and consumer lending activities, will be
rebuilt to modernize the customer experience in our “bank of the future” model as previously completed in Rich-
land and Grove City. This update will also include upgrades to the building to provide better functionality for
both our retail and mortgage banking customers.

Our commitment to the communities we serve will also continue by providing financial education in local high
schools and expanding our products and financial education for low-to-moderate income individuals and fami-
lies. We believe that financial literacy is critical to the building of healthy and sustainable communities. This year
we will be adding a first time homebuyer mortgage product for low-to-moderate income individuals and families.
We will also launch a new deposit product that will provide a safe, affordable transactional bank account that
supports sustainable banking for the unbanked and underbanked in our community.
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We will also continue the initiatives to build a robust and responsive community bank. This means continued
investment in core system capabilities as well as risk assessment and cyber technology tools to maintain the safe
and secure management of customer data and banking services. We will also maintain our strong and consistent
loan underwriting, monitoring and collection practices to maximize profit and shareholder value.

We continually improve our compliance processes to meet the evolving regulatory guidelines including fraud
detection and reporting. 2020 saw a significant increase in suspected fraud due to the economic climate following
the pandemic shutdowns. We are also committed to building an excellent workplace for all, focusing on
implementation of added diversity and inclusion practices in 2021.

REMEMBERING A FRIEND
Mars Bank and our surrounding communities experienced a significant loss in 2020. We would like to take this
opportunity to direct your attention to the inside back cover of this report where we memorialize Charles A.
Norton. Chuck was a great leader of, and friend to, the bank. He will be missed.

CLOSING
There is an old saying that “adversity reveals character”. As the pandemic and shutdowns that followed unfolded
in 2020, the character of the leadership and staff of Mars Bank was revealed. It was no surprise to us that this
character was made of compassion, spirit, flexibility, and dedication. A year of unprecedented service pushed the
bank to re-invent itself in a matter of days and weeks.

As we move forward, we are more confident than ever that Mars Bank is, and will continue to be, a true commun-
ity bank that is focused on the needs of the people and organizations we serve and the communities we love. It is
good to know that we are ready to take on the challenges of 2021 and beyond… whatever they may be.

Our mission remains to deliver high-quality products, services, and experiences to our customers, provide a fair
return to our shareholders, and continue to adapt and evolve as an attractive and fulfilling workplace. Also, to
continue our role as a leading organization in our communities, working to help them succeed and providing
support where we can make others’ lives better.

Thank you to our board, management team, and staff for their dedication and hard work in a very challenging
year. We also thank our shareholders for their trust and confidence in us. We look to the future with hope, and
wish each of you a safe and productive 2021.

Sincerely,

James V. Dionise Janet L. van Buskirk Balentine
President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board
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Financial Highlights

2020 2019 Change

For the Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

EARNINGS

Net interest income $11,114 $11,007 1.0%

Provision for loan losses 338 15 n/m

Non-interest income 3,458 2,347 47.4%

Non-interest expense 11,998 11,226 6.9%

Income tax expense 251 280 -10.4%

Net income 1,985 1,833 8.3%

SHARE DATA

Earnings per share $ 24.81 $ 22.91 8.3%

PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.45% 0.46% -1bp

Return on average equity 5.03% 5.02% 1bp

Net interest margin 2.75% 2.98% -23bps

Efficiency ratio 82.34% 84.06% -172bps

At December 31,
(dollars in millions, except per share data)

BALANCE SHEET

Assets $ 464.3 $ 407.7 13.9%

Loans 281.8 270.1 4.3%

Deposits 414.2 352.5 17.5%

Stockholders’ equity 40.2 37.6 7.2%

CAPITAL

Book value per share $503.10 $469.50 7.2%

Total risk-based capital ratio 16.28% 16.02% 26bps

CREDIT QUALITY

Delinquent loans $ 0.1 $ 0.1 n/m

Non-accrual loans 1.1 0.1 n/m

Delinquent loans/loans 0.03% 0.02% 1bp

Non-accrual loans/loans 0.38% 0.02% 36bps

Allowance for loan losses/loans 1.03% 0.95% 8bps

n/m - not meaningful

2020
Net Income

20192020 2018
Return on Average Assets

20182019

$1,803$1,833
$1,985

0.46% 0.46%0.45%

Net Interest Margin
20192020 201820192020 2018

Earnings per Share

$22.54$22.91
$24.81

2.94%2.98%2.75%

20192020 20202018
Assets

2019 2018
Loans

$247.3
$270.1$281.8

$396.9$407.7
$464.3

20192020 2018
Stockholders’ Equity

20192020 2018
Deposits 

$414.2

$340.5$352.5 $35.0
$40.2 $37.6

20192020
Book Value per Share

20192020
Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio

$437.83

2018

$469.50$503.10 16.61%

2018

16.02%16.28%

201820192020
Delinquent Loans/Loans

0.05%

0.95%
1.04%

201820192020
Allowance/Loans

0.03%
0.02%

1.03%
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mars Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mars Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the con-
solidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mars Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 25, 2021

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate and
independent legal entities. © 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,

2020 2019

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 53,762,757 $ 18,383,514
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1,143,939 1,100,950

Cash and Cash Equivalents 54,906,696 19,484,464

Securities available for sale 110,627,138 101,246,580

Loans 281,773,363 270,099,589
Less allowance for loan losses 2,914,956 2,575,493

Net Loans 278,858,407 267,524,096

Premises and equipment, net 6,733,695 6,268,100
Restricted investments in bank stock 3,283,600 3,252,500
Bank-owned life insurance 7,837,975 7,639,551
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 2,060,359 2,267,922

Total Assets $464,307,870 $407,683,213

LIABILITIES

Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing demand $131,588,257 $ 98,646,940
Interest-bearing demand 48,892,799 42,791,158
Savings 92,129,523 73,309,908
Money market 97,157,689 75,882,323
Time 44,413,394 61,916,470

Total Deposits 414,181,662 352,546,799

Borrowed funds 6,993,030 15,253,909
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 2,885,358 2,322,469

Total Liabilities 424,060,050 370,123,177

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, par value $.01 per share;

4,000,000 shares authorized, 80,000 shares issued and outstanding 800 800
Capital surplus 799,200 799,200
Undivided profits 37,302,022 36,277,080
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,145,798 482,956

Total Stockholders’ Equity 40,247,820 37,560,036

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $464,307,870 $407,683,213

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019

INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fees $10,569,542 $10,633,420
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 108,323 365,714
Securities:

Taxable 1,518,081 1,716,650
Exempt from federal income tax 489,901 482,702

Total Interest Income 12,685,847 13,198,486

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits 1,274,653 1,848,908
Interest on borrowed funds 297,123 342,635

Total Interest Expense 1,571,776 2,191,543

Net Interest Income 11,114,071 11,006,943

Provision for Loan Losses 338,000 15,000

Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses 10,776,071 10,991,943

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposits 134,840 144,561
NSF fees 67,204 104,237
ATM processing fees 447,053 465,153
Investment services 43,279 38,683
Gain on sales of mortgages originated for sale 1,452,143 603,284
Net gain on sales of available for sale securities 155,705 3,973
Restricted investments in bank stock dividends 198,289 248,000
Bank-owned life insurance income 198,424 206,344
Other 760,699 532,471

Total Non-Interest Income 3,457,636 2,346,706

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 6,865,855 6,452,354
Occupancy 520,033 569,481
Furniture and equipment 1,059,306 991,725
Pennsylvania shares tax 349,465 324,026
FDIC insurance 99,691 25,218
Professional fees 582,765 391,341
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 147,189 -
Other 2,373,461 2,471,600

Total Non-Interest Expense 11,997,765 11,225,745

Income before Income Taxes 2,235,942 2,112,904

Income Tax Expense 251,000 280,000

Net Income $ 1,984,942 $ 1,832,904

Earnings per Share $ 24.81 $ 22.91

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019

Net Income $1,984,942 $1,832,904

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax:
Net unrealized gains on securities:

Net unrealized holding gains arising during period
(net of income taxes of $474,716 in 2020 and $442,331 in 2019) 1,785,849 1,664,007

Less: Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income
(net of income taxes of $32,698 in 2020 and $834 in 2019) (1)(2) (123,007) (3,139)

Other Comprehensive Income 1,662,842 1,660,868

Comprehensive Income $3,647,784 $3,493,772

(1) Gross amount included in net gain on sales of available for sale securities on consolidated statements of income was $155,705 in 2020
and $3,973 in 2019.

(2) The income tax effect included in income tax expense on consolidated statements of income.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Undivided
Profits

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss) Income Total

Balance at December 31, 2018 $800 $ 799,200 $ 35,404,176 $(1,177,912) $ 35,026,264

Net income - - 1,832,904 - 1,832,904
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 1,660,868 1,660,868
Cash dividends declared on common stock

at $12.00 per share - - (960,000) - (960,000)

Balance at December 31, 2019 $800 $ 799,200 $ 36,277,080 $ 482,956 $ 37,560,036

Net income - - 1,984,942 - 1,984,942
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 1,662,842 1,662,842
Cash dividends declared on common stock

at $12.00 per share - - (960,000) - (960,000)

Balance at December 31, 2020 $800 $799,200 $37,302,022 $ 2,145,798 $40,247,820

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1,984,942 $ 1,832,904
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 338,000 15,000
Provision for depreciation and amortization 410,625 359,588
Net amortization of securities premiums and discounts 40,085 166,434
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (56,170) 15,303
Net (accretion) amortization of deferred loan fees and costs (8,034) 149,667
Net realized gain on sale of securities available for sale (155,705) (3,973)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans originated for sale 56,953,209 33,424,123
Net gain on sale of mortgage loans originated for sale (1,452,143) (603,284)
Mortgage loans originated for sale (56,933,605) (32,920,719)
Earnings on investments in life insurance (198,424) (206,344)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable and other assets (170,777) 216,861
Increase in accrued interest payable and other liabilities 555,378 309,963

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,307,381 2,755,523

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment securities available for sale:

Purchases of securities (56,236,118) (36,208,504)
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayments of securities 34,526,021 30,396,239
Proceeds from sales of securities 14,550,022 6,917,125

Net increase in loans receivable (10,231,738) (22,831,855)
Purchases of restricted bank stock (633,700) (1,064,900)
Redemptions of restricted bank stock 602,600 1,279,200
Purchases of premises and equipment (876,220) (282,906)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (18,299,133) (21,795,601)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in deposits 61,634,863 12,051,120
Net decrease in other borrowings (8,260,879) (4,137,526)
Cash dividends paid (960,000) (960,000)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 52,413,984 6,953,594

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,422,232 (12,086,484)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 19,484,464 31,570,948

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 54,906,696 $ 19,484,464

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 1,624,028 $ 2,172,108
Income taxes paid 345,000 306,097

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mars Bancorp, Inc. and its direct
and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, Mars Bank (“Bank”) and Mars Insurance Services, LLC (“MIS”). All
material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As used in these notes to the consolidated financial statements, Mars Bancorp, Inc. and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Company”.

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is under the regulatory
jurisdiction of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. The Bank is subject to regulation and
supervision by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securities and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpo-
ration (“FDIC”). The Company’s activity consists of owning and supervising its subsidiary, Mars Bank. The Bank
derives its principal sources of revenue from its residential and commercial real estate portfolios, commercial,
industrial and consumer loans, investment securities portfolio, as well as a variety of deposit services offered to its
customers through six branch offices, which are located in areas of Allegheny, Butler, and Mercer counties in
Western Pennsylvania. MIS provides real estate settlement services and title insurance to the Bank’s customers in
connection with its residential and commercial real estate lending activities. MIS is subject to review and conducts
business under the jurisdiction of the FDIC and the Pennsylvania Insurance Department.

The Company has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of
December 31, 2020 for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. The evaluation was conducted through February 25, 2021, the date these consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of significant accounting and reporting policies applied in the presentation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements follows:

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”), requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the
near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the potential impairment of restricted stock,
the valuation of deferred tax assets and the determination of other-than-temporary impairment on securities.

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located within its local trade area. Note 3 discusses the types
of securities in which the Company invests. Note 4 discusses the types of loans that the Company originates. The
Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer. Although the Company
has a diversified loan portfolio, exposure to credit loss can be adversely impacted by downturns in local economic
and employment conditions.
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Securities
Currently, the Company’s investment securities portfolio is classified as available for sale. The portfolio serves
principally as a source of liquidity and is carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as
increases or decreases to other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, until realized. Premiums and discounts
are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities. Realized gains and
losses on sales of securities available for sale are computed using the specific identification method. Interest and
dividends on investment securities are recognized as interest income when earned.

Restricted Investments in Bank Stock
The Bank owns restricted stock investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (“FHLB”) and Atlantic
Community Bankers Bank (“ACBB”). The investment in FHLB stock at December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$3,203,600 and $3,172,500, respectively. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the ACBB investment was $80,000. The
investments are required by law according to predetermined formulas. These investments are carried at cost.

The FHLB pays a dividend to the Bank for its restricted stock investment in the FHLB. The Bank earned $198,089
and $246,960 in dividends in 2020 and 2019, respectively. In addition, the FHLB continues to repurchase excess
capital stock consistent with its practice in past quarters. Repurchase of capital stock totaled $602,600 and
$1,279,200 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Management evaluates the restricted stock for impairment in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 942-325-35, Accounting by Certain Entities
(Including Entities With Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others. Management’s
determination of whether these investments are impaired is based on its assessment of the ultimate recoverability
of their cost, rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value. The determination of whether a decline
affects the ultimate recoverability of their cost is influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in
net assets of the FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount for the FHLB and the length of time this situation
has persisted, (2) commitments by the FHLB to make payments required by law or regulation and the level of
such payments in relation to the operating performance of the FHLB, and (3) the impact of legislative and regu-
latory changes on institutions and, accordingly, on the customer base of the FHLB.

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the FHLB restricted stock as of December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
The Company reviews its investment portfolio on a quarterly basis for indications of other-than-temporary
impairment (“OTTI”). This review includes analyzing the length of time and the extent to which fair value has
been lower than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, including any specific events
that may influence the operations of the issuer, and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in the market.

The Company recognizes credit-related OTTI on debt securities in earnings while noncredit-related OTTI on
debt securities not expected to be sold is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The Company
assesses whether the credit loss existed by considering whether (1) the Company has the intent to sell the security,
(2) it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery, or (3) the
Company does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. The Company can bifurcate
the OTTI on securities not expected to be sold or where the entire amortized cost of the security is not expected to
be recovered into the components representing credit loss and the component representing loss related to other
factors. The portion of the fair value decline attributable to credit loss is recognized through earnings.
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Loans
Loans that the Company has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are
stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance for loan losses (“ALLL”) and any
deferred fees or costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. The loans receivable portfolio is
segmented into commercial and industrial, consumer and real estate loans. Real estate loans consist of the follow-
ing classes: residential and commercial mortgages.

For all classes of loans, the accrual of interest is generally discontinued when the contractual payment of principal
or interest has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further collection of principal or
interest, even though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process
of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, unpaid interest
credited to income in the current year is reversed and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged against the
allowance for loan losses. Interest received on non-accrual loans generally is either applied against principal or
reported as interest income, according to management’s judgment as to the collection of principal. Generally,
loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with the
contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ultimate collection of the total contractual principal and
interest is no longer in doubt. The past due status of all classes of loans receivable is determined based on con-
tractual due dates for loan payments.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs
Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are being deferred for loans receivable. The net
amount is amortized as an adjustment to the related loan’s yield. Management is amortizing these amounts over
the contractual life of the related loans. As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, net deferred fees and
costs totaled $131,563 and $133,743, respectively.

Commitment fees that are based on a percentage of a customer’s unused lines of credit and fees related to standby
letters of credit are recognized as income over the commitment period.

Mortgages Held for Sale
Mortgages originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated
fair value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges
to income. Mortgages held for sale are sold with servicing rights released. Gains and losses on sales of mortgages
are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage sold.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The allowance for loan losses is increased by the provi-
sion for loan losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged
against the allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. All or part of
the principal balance of loans receivable are charged off to the allowance as soon as it is determined that the
repayment of all or part of the principal balance is highly unlikely. No portion of the allowance for loan losses is
restricted to any individual loan or groups of loans, and the entire allowance is available to absorb any and all loan
losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to absorb losses that can be reasonably
anticipated. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on past loan loss experi-
ence, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay,
estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and
other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to sig-
nificant revision as more information becomes available.
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The allowance consists of specific, general and inherent risk components. The specific component relates to loans
that are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the dis-
counted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying
value of that loan. The general component covers pools of loans by loan type including commercial and commer-
cial real estate loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential
real estate, home equity, and other consumer loans and further segmented by risk ratings of pass, special mention,
substandard, and doubtful. Loans that have a 100% government guarantee are not evaluated for specific, general,
or inherent credit loss risk.

An inherent risk component of the Company’s allowance for loan losses is maintained to cover uncertainties that
could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The inherent risk component of the allowance reflects the
margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific
and general losses in the portfolio.

Pass pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of
loans, adjusted for qualitative factors. These qualitative risk factors include:

• Changes in lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off,
and recovery practices;

• Changes in national and local economic and business conditions, including the condition of various market
segments;

• Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio;

• Changes in the experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff;

• Changes in the volume and severity of past due and classified loans, and in the volume of non-accruals, trou-
bled debt restructurings, and other loan modifications;

• Changes in the quality of the Company’s loan review system and the degree of oversight by the Company’s
Board of Directors;

• Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans;

• The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit, and changes in the level of such concentrations;

• The effect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements, on the level of
estimated loan losses in the Company’s current portfolio.

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect improving, stable or declining conditions based on management’s best
judgment using relevant information available at the time of the evaluation. Adjustments to the factors are sup-
ported through documentation of changes in conditions in a narrative accompanying the allowance for loan loss
calculation.

Included in the Company’s loan assets are loans to business owners of various types. The Company makes com-
mercial loans for real estate development and other business purposes required by the customer base.

The Company’s credit policy determines advance rates against the different forms of collateral that can be pledged
against commercial and industrial loans. Typically, the majority of loans will be limited to a percentage of their
underlying collateral values such as real estate values, equipment, eligible accounts receivable, and inventory.
Individual loan advance rates may be higher or lower depending upon the financial strength of the borrower and/

15



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

or term of the loan. The assets financed through commercial loans are used within the business for its ongoing
operation. Repayment of these kinds of loans generally comes from the cash flow of the business or the ongoing
conversion of assets. Commercial real estate loans include long-term loans financing commercial properties.
Repayment of this kind of loan is dependent upon either the ongoing cash flow of the borrowing entity or the
resale of or lease of the subject property. Commercial real estate loans typically require a loan to value ratio of not
greater than 80% and vary in terms.

Residential mortgages and home equity loans are secured by the borrower’s residential real estate in either a first
or subordinate lien position. Residential mortgages and home equity loans have varying loan rates depending on
credit score and the loan to value ratio. Residential mortgages have amortizations up to 30 years and home equity
loans have maturities up to 20 years. Other consumer loans include installment loans, car loans, and overdraft
lines of credit.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due, according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment
status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking
into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and borrower, including the length of the delay,
reasons for the delay, borrower’s prior payment record and amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and
interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and industrial loans and commer-
cial real estate loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, loan’s obtainable market price or fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Company’s impaired loans are measured based on the esti-
mated fair value of the loan’s collateral. For commercial loans secured by real estate, estimated fair values are
determined primarily through third-party appraisals. When a real estate secured loan becomes impaired, a deci-
sion is made regarding whether an updated appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is based on vari-
ous considerations, including the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the original
appraisal and the condition of the property. Appraised values are discounted by the estimated costs to sell the
property to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral, which is considered to be the estimated fair value.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by non-real estate collateral, such as accounts receivable, inventory
and equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower’s financial statements, inventory
reports, accounts receivable or equipment appraisals or invoices. Indications of value from these sources are gen-
erally discounted based on the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual residential mortgage loans, home equity loans and other
consumer loans for impairment disclosures, unless such loans are the subject of a troubled debt restructuring
agreement.

Loans whose terms are modified are classified as troubled debt restructurings if the Company grants such bor-
rowers concessions that would not be granted to other customers and it is deemed that those borrowers are
experiencing financial difficulty. Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring generally involve a
temporary reduction in interest rate or an extension of a loan’s stated maturity date. Non-accrual troubled debt
restructurings are restored to accrual status if principal and interest payments, under the modified terms, are
current for six consecutive months after modification. Loans classified as troubled debt restructurings are des-
ignated as impaired.
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The allowance calculation methodology includes further segregation of loan classes into risk rating categories. The
borrower’s overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, if appropriate, are
evaluated annually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent loan payments, for
commercial and consumer loans. Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory classifications of special mention,
substandard, doubtful and loss. Loans classified special mention have potential weaknesses that deserve manage-
ment’s close attention. If uncorrected, the potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment
prospects. Loans classified substandard have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liqui-
dation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound net worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified doubtful have all the weaknesses
inherent in loans classified substandard with the added characteristic that collection or liquidation in full, on the
basis of current conditions and facts, is highly improbable. Loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible
and are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Loans not criticized or classified are rated pass.

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Company’s allowance for loan losses and may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based
on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination, which may not be cur-
rently available to management. Based on management’s comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, manage-
ment believes the current level of the allowance for loan losses is adequate.

Foreclosed Assets
Foreclosed assets are comprised of property acquired through a foreclosure proceeding or acceptance of a deed in
lieu of foreclosure. Such properties are included in other assets. The Company did not have any foreclosed assets
at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Foreclosed assets initially are recorded at fair value, net of estimated selling costs, at the date of foreclosure estab-
lishing a new cost basis. After foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets
are carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Revenues are included in other income
and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in other expense.

Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed using both the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the premises and
equipment. Charges for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance
The Company purchased insurance on the lives of certain key executive officers. The policies accumulate asset
values to meet future liabilities, including the payment of employee benefits. Increases in the cash surrender value
and proceeds upon the death of a key employee are recorded as non-interest income in the consolidated state-
ments of income. The cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance is recorded as an asset on the con-
solidated balance sheets.

Advertising Costs
The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. Total advertising
expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $312,988 and $373,345, respectively.

Income Taxes
Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different years for financial reporting purposes than for
income tax purposes. Deferred taxes are provided to recognize these temporary differences. The principal items
involved are investment securities, provision for loan losses and benefit plans. Income tax expense is not propor-
tionate to earnings before taxes, principally because income from obligations of states and political subdivisions
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and increases in the cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance is nontaxable. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more-likely-than-not that some por-
tion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of
changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained in a tax
examination based solely on its merits. An uncertain tax position will not be recognized if it has less than 50%
likelihood of being sustained. Under the threshold guidelines, the Company believes no significant uncertain tax
positions exist, either individually or in the aggregate, that would result in recognition of a liability for unrecog-
nized tax benefits as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Earnings per Share
The Company has a simple capital structure. Basic earnings per share represents income available to common
stockholders divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. The
average weighted shares outstanding were 80,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company has defined cash and cash equivalents as those amounts included in the balance sheet captions cash
and due from banks and interest-bearing deposits with banks.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments, consist-
ing of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the balance
sheet when they are funded.

Comprehensive Income
Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on securities avail-
able for sale, are reported as a separate component in the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along
with net income, are components of comprehensive income. The only component of other comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is the net unrealized gain on securities available for sale,
respectively.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The majority of the Company’s revenues are derived from interest income and other related sources, primarily
loans and investment securities.

A description of the Company’s non-interest income revenue streams accounted for under ASC 606 is as follows:

Service Charges on Deposit Accounts and NSF Fees: The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for
individual account services and transactions, account maintenance, and overdraft services. Transaction-based
fees, which include services such as ATM use fees, stop payment fees, and ACH origination fees are recognized at
the time the transaction is executed since that is the point in time when the service is performed and the custom-
er’s request is completed by the Company. Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily to monthly main-
tenance and minimum balance requirements, are earned over the course of a month, representing the period over
which the Company satisfies its performance obligation. Overdraft and NSF fees are recognized at the point in
time that the overdraft and NSF fee occurs. Service charges on deposits are withdrawn from the customer’s
account balance.
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Interchange Income: The Company earns interchange fees from its debit cardholder transactions conducted
through the payment provider network. Interchange fees from cardholder transactions generally represent a per-
centage of the underlying transaction value and are recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing
services provided to the cardholder.

Recent Accounting Standards
In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit
Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“CECL”), which replaces the current
incurred loss impairment methodology with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses measured at amor-
tized cost and certain other instruments, including loans, held-to-maturity debt securities, net investments in
leases, and off-balance sheet credit exposures. In addition, CECL will require the use of a modified
available-for-sale debt security impairment model and eliminate the current accounting for purchased credit
impaired loans and debt securities. In October 2019, the FASB approved a delay of the required implementation
date of ASU 2016-13 (as amended) for public business entities. ASU 2019-10 delayed the effective date from fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020 to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim
periods within the fiscal year. Management is evaluating the impact that the adoption of this update will have on
its consolidated financial statements; however, due to the significant differences in the revised guidance from
existing GAAP, the impact of this guidance may result in material changes in our accounting for credit losses on
financial instruments.

Risks and Uncertainties
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease of 2019
(“COVID-19”) a global pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected, and may continue to
adversely affect local, national and global economic activity. Actions taken to help mitigate the spread of COVID-
19 include restrictions on travel, localized quarantines, and government-mandated closures of certain businesses.
The spread of the outbreak has caused significant disruptions to the U.S. economy and has disrupted banking and
other financial activity in the areas in which the Company operates.

On March 3, 2020, the Federal Open Market Committee reduced the targeted federal funds interest rate range by
50 basis points to 1.00 percent to 1.25 percent. This range was further reduced to 0 percent to 0.25 percent on
March 16, 2020. On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act was
enacted to, among other provisions, provide emergency assistance for individuals, families and businesses affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic. These reductions in interest rates and other effects of the COVID-19 pandemic may
materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations in future periods. It is
unknown how long the adverse conditions associated with the COVID-19 pandemic will last and what the com-
plete financial effect will be to the Company. It is possible that estimates made in the financial statements could be
materially and adversely impacted as a result of these conditions, including estimates regarding expected credit
losses on loans receivable, other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities and impairment of assets.

Section 4013 of the CARES Act (and subsequent amendment), provides that, from the period beginning March 1,
2020 until the earlier of December 31, 2022 or the date that is 60 days after the date on which the national emer-
gency concerning the COVID-19 pandemic declared by the President of the United States under the National
Emergencies Act terminates (the “applicable period”). Some of the provisions applicable to the Company include,
but are not limited to:

• Accounting for Loan Modifications - The CARES Act provides that a financial institution may elect to
suspend (1) the requirements under GAAP for certain loan modifications that would otherwise be cate-
gorized as a troubled debt restructure (“TDR”) and (2) any determination that such loan modifications
would be considered a TDR, including the related impairment for accounting purposes. The suspension
is applicable for the term of the loan modification that occurs during the applicable period for a loan
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that was not more than 30 days past due as of December 31, 2019. The suspension is not applicable to
any adverse impact on the credit of a borrower that is not related to the pandemic.

• Paycheck Protection Program - The CARES Act established the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”),
an expansion of the Small Business Administration’s 7(a) loan program and the Economic Injury Dis-
aster Loan Program (“EIDL”), administrated directly by the Small Business Administration (“SBA”).

• Mortgage Forbearance - Under the CARES Act, through the earlier of December 31, 2020, mortgage
customers experiencing financial hardship due to COVID-19 may request forbearance on the loan for
up to 30 days, with up to two additional 30-day periods at the borrower’s request.

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are
summarized as follows:

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

DECEMBER 31, 2020

U.S. government agencies
and corporations $ 23,216,324 $ 205,499 $ (33,434) $ 23,388,389

Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 27,522,082 645,766 (3,240) 28,164,608

Residential collateralized mortgage
obligations guaranteed by U.S.
government agencies 36,767,502 1,025,854 (24,191) 37,769,165

Mortgage-backed securities 20,405,030 899,946 - 21,304,976

Total $107,910,938 $2,777,065 $ (60,865) $110,627,138

DECEMBER 31, 2019

U.S. government agencies
and corporations $ 28,162,997 $ 126,286 $ (43,696) $ 28,245,587

Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 19,993,708 288,225 (437) 20,281,496

Residential collateralized mortgage
obligations guaranteed by U.S.
government agencies 24,277,149 253,955 (160,532) 24,370,572

Mortgage-backed securities 28,201,386 244,758 (97,219) 28,348,925

Total $ 100,635,240 $ 913,224 $(301,884) $ 101,246,580
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The majority of the mortgaged-backed securities (“MBS”) represent residential mortgages as of December 31,
2020 and 2019. The remainder of the mortgaged-backed securities are comprised of Mortgage-Backed Delegated
Underwriting and Servicing (“DUS”) Bonds. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had a fair value of
$5,505,128 and $7,331,177 in DUS Bonds, respectively. These MBS securities are issued by Fannie Mae (“FNMA”)
consisting of a single loan or a pool of loans backed by multifamily properties, which must be income producing
and consist of at least five residential units. These bonds carry FNMA backing and an implied government
guarantee. The bonds pay timely monthly principal and interest and are structured with 5-, 7-, 10-, 15-, and
18-year fixed-rate balloon maturities and 25- or 30-year amortization schedules, depending on the life of the
property. DUS related loans include a prepayment deterrent fee, or yield maintenance contract, which mitigates
prepayment risk on the securities. The yield maintenance period often encompasses the majority of the life of the
loan. The bonds are typically structured with a 7- or 10-year balloon term, and a 6.5- or 9.5-year yield main-
tenance period, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities available for sale at December 31, 2020, by con-
tractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 4,901,866 $ 4,953,346
Due after one year through five years 23,296,038 23,894,205
Due after five years through ten years 25,379,278 25,994,418
Due after ten years 54,333,756 55,785,169

Total $107,910,938 $110,627,138

Investment securities available for sale with a fair value of $53,534,780 and $46,546,903 at December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits as required by law.

Sales of securities generated proceeds of $14,550,022 and $6,917,125 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company
realized gross gains and losses on sales of these securities of $162,739 and $7,034, respectively, in 2020. The
Company realized gross gains and losses on sales of these securities of $27,984 and $24,011, respectively, in 2019.
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The following tables show the Company’s investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss posi-
tion, at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

DECEMBER 31, 2020
U.S. government agencies and

corporations $ 4,673,546 $ 33,434 $ - $ - $ 4,673,546 $ 33,434
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 801,472 3,240 - - 801,472 3,240
Residential collateralized mortgage

obligations guaranteed by U.S.
government agencies 3,040,690 24,191 - - 3,040,690 24,191

Mortgage-backed securities - - - - - -

Total $ 8,515,708 $ 60,865 $ - $ - $ 8,515,708 $ 60,865

DECEMBER 31, 2019
U.S. government agencies and

corporations $ 3,454,470 $ 5,794 $16,701,041 $ 37,902 $20,155,511 $ 43,696
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 1,505,004 437 - - 1,505,004 437
Residential collateralized mortgage

obligations guaranteed by U.S.
government agencies 14,014,601 160,532 - - 14,014,601 160,532

Mortgage-backed securities 2,169,819 15,905 10,285,761 81,314 12,455,580 97,219

Total $21,143,894 $182,668 $26,986,802 $119,216 $48,130,696 $301,884

There has been a decrease in the number and in the fair value dollar amount from December 31, 2019 to
December 31, 2020 of securities that have unrealized losses. At December 31, 2020, nine securities totaling
$8.5 million were in an unrealized loss position compared to forty-six securities totaling $48.1 million in an
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2019. The individual losses ranged from $2 to $16,705 at December 31,
2020 as compared to losses that ranged from $5 to $51,934 at December 31, 2019 and the total gross unrealized
loss decreased from $301,884 at December 31, 2019 to $60,865 at December 31, 2020. The primary driver behind
the market value changes of these securities relate to various changes in interest rates. There was a decrease in the
number and dollar amount of securities with unrealized losses more than 12 months. At December 31, 2020, there
were no securities in an unrealized loss position more than twelve months compared to twenty-seven securities
totaling $27.0 million in an unrealized loss position more than twelve months at December 31, 2019. The primary
reason these bonds have unrealized losses relates to their original purchase date and the interest rate/spreads that
was in effect at that date. There has been no material negative change in credit issues in the portfolio. Seven of the
securities with principal balances totaling $7.7 million have the explicit or implicit guarantee of the U.S. Govern-
ment. The remaining two securities relate to obligations of states and political subdivisions. The Company has
performed an analysis of these securities as summarized in the “OTTI” accounting policy. Management believes
that the unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are a result of the current interest rate environment and not
a reflection of credit quality.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS

The Company’s loan portfolio is segmented to enable management to monitor risk and performance. The real
estate loans are further classified into two classes. Residential mortgages include those secured by first and second
lien residential properties while commercial mortgages are comprised of loans to commercial customers for
self-use or income-producing commercial or residential real estate. The commercial and industrial segment con-
sists of loans to finance the activities of commercial customers. The consumer segment consists primarily of auto
loans and personal loans.

Residential mortgage loans are typically longer-term loans which generally entail greater interest rate risk than
consumer and commercial loans. Under certain economic conditions, housing values may decline, which may
increase the risk that the collateral values are insufficient. Commercial real estate loans generally present a higher
level of risk than loans secured by residences. This greater risk is due to several factors including but not limited to
concentration of principal in a limited number of loans and borrowers, the effect of general economic conditions
on income producing properties and the increased difficulty in monitoring these types of loans. Furthermore, the
repayment of commercial real estate loans is typically dependent upon successful operation of the related real
estate project. If the cash flow from the project is reduced by such occurrences as leases not being obtained,
renewed or not entirely fulfilled, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Commercial and
industrial loans are primarily secured by business assets, inventories and accounts receivable which present
collateral risk. Consumer loans generally have higher interest rates and shorter terms than residential mortgage
loans, however, they have additional credit risk due to the type of collateral securing the loan.

The CARES Act created the PPP loan program which provides payroll assistance for small businesses and select
nonprofits in the form of 100% guaranteed loans from the SBA. The Company was a participating lender in the
PPP loan program.

Major classifications of loans receivable at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:

2020 2019

Real Estate:
Residential $156,799,726 $152,211,564
Commercial 94,607,524 97,678,866

Commercial and industrial 30,211,443 19,791,430
Consumer 285,833 281,604

Total 281,904,526 269,963,464

Less unamortized deferred loan fees and (costs) 131,163 (136,125)

281,773,363 270,099,589
Less allowance for loan losses 2,914,956 2,575,493

Net Loans $278,858,407 $267,524,096

During 2020, the Company originated 184 loans totaling $15,500,227 through its participation in the PPP loan
program. As of December 31, 2020, 60 of these loans totaling $4,142,997 have been forgiven by the SBA. The
remaining balance of the PPP loans at December 31, 2020 totaled $11,357,230 and are included in the commercial
and industrial loan totals above. In connection with the SBA’s PPP Loan program, the Company received
$681,614 in PPP loan origination fees of which $307,442 was recognized in interest income during 2020. The
remaining balance of $374,172 is deferred and included with net unamortized deferred loan fees as part of the
loans in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2020.
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In the normal course of business, loans are extended to directors, executive officers and their related interests and
affiliates. In management’s opinion, all of these loans are on substantially the same terms and conditions as loans
to other individuals and businesses of comparable creditworthiness. The aggregate amount of credit extended to
these directors and executive officers at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $413,444 and $442,198, respectively.
During 2020, $55,000 of new loans and principal advances were made and repayments totaled $83,754.

Mortgages held for sale totaled $1,819,689 and $387,150 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and are
included in the residential real estate balances above.

NOTE 5 - ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following table presents the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating and the clas-
sified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Company’s internal risk rating system as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Pass Special Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Real Estate:

Residential $156,750,062 $ - $ 49,664 $ - $156,799,726
Commercial 91,675,730 2,931,794 - - 94,607,524

Commercial and
industrial 29,196,339 - 1,015,104 - 30,211,443

Consumer 285,047 - 786 - 285,833

Total $277,907,178 $2,931,794 $1,065,554 $ - $281,904,526

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Real Estate:

Residential $ 152,153,600 $ - $ 57,964 $ - $ 152,211,564
Commercial 97,678,779 - 87 - 97,678,866

Commercial and
industrial 19,791,430 - - - 19,791,430

Consumer 278,655 - 2,949 - 281,604

Total $ 269,902,464 $ - $ 61,000 $ - $ 269,963,464

The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the loans receiv-
able as determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The table on the following page presents
the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the past due status as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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Current

30-59
Days

Past Due

60-89
Days

Past Due

Greater
than

90 Days

Total
Past
Due

Total
Loans

Receivable

Non-
Accrual
Loans

Loans
Receivable

90 Days Past
Due and
Accruing

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Real Estate:

Residential $156,721,832 $77,894 $ - $ - $77,894 $156,799,726 $ 49,664 $ -
Commercial 94,607,524 - - - - 94,607,524 - -

Commercial
and industrial 30,211,443 - - - - 30,211,443 1,015,104 -

Consumer 285,047 786 - - 786 285,833 786 -

Total $281,825,846 $78,680 $ - $ - $78,680 $281,904,526 $1,065,554 $ -

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Real Estate:

Residential $ 152,158,114 $ 53,450 $ - $ - $ 53,450 $ 152,211,564 $ 57,963 $ -
Commercial 97,678,779 87 - - 87 97,678,866 - -

Commercial
and industrial 19,791,430 - - - - 19,791,430 - -

Consumer 278,655 - 2,949 - 2,949 281,604 2,949 -

Total $ 269,906,978 $ 53,537 $2,949 $ - $ 56,486 $ 269,963,464 $ 60,912 $ -

The following tables summarize information in regards to impaired loans by loan portfolio class as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized

DECEMBER 31, 2020
With no related allowance recorded:

Real Estate:
Residential $43,017 $ - $57,181 $46,510 $ -

Total $43,017 $ - $57,181 $46,510 $ -

Total
Real Estate:

Residential $43,017 $ - $57,181 $46,150 $ -

Total $43,017 $ - $57,181 $46,510 $ -

DECEMBER 31, 2019
With no related allowance recorded:

Real Estate:
Residential $ 49,137 $ - $ 60,975 $ 52,313 $ -

Total $ 49,137 $ - $ 60,975 $ 52,313 $ -

Total
Real Estate:

Residential $ 49,137 $ - $ 60,975 $ 52,313 $ -

Total $ 49,137 $ - $ 60,975 $ 52,313 $ -

The Company did not have any impaired loans with an allowance recorded at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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The primary segments of the allowance for loan losses, segregated into the amount required for loans individually
evaluated for impairment and the amount required for loans collectively evaluated for potential losses as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Beginning
Balance

Charge-
Offs Recoveries Provisions

Ending
Balance

Ending
Balance

Individually
Evaluated

For
Impairment

Ending
Balance

Collectively
Evaluated

For
Impairment

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Real Estate:

Residential $1,417,298 $ - $ - $ 44,161 $1,461,459 $ - $1,461,459
Commercial 901,164 - - 184,379 1,085,543 - 1,085,543

Commercial
and industrial 144,548 - - 158,747 303,295 - 303,295

Consumer 1,723 - 1,463 (1,093) 2,093 - 2,093
Inherent risk 110,760 - - (48,194) 62,566 - 62,566

Total $2,575,493 $ - $1,463 $338,000 $2,914,956 $ - $2,914,956

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Real Estate:

Residential $ 1,369,720 $ - $ - $ 47,578 $ 1,417,298 $ - $ 1,417,298
Commercial 869,725 - - 31,439 901,164 - 901,164

Commercial
and industrial 130,307 - - 14,241 144,548 - 144,548

Consumer 536 (2,286) - 3,473 1,723 - 1,723
Inherent risk 192,491 - - (81,731) 110,760 - 110,760

Total $ 2,562,779 $ (2,286) $ - $ 15,000 $ 2,575,493 $ - $ 2,575,493
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The following table summarizes loans evaluated both individually and collectively for impairment as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Ending
Balance

Ending
Balance

Individually
Evaluated

For
Impairment

Ending
Balance

Collectively
Evaluated

For
Impairment

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Real Estate:

Residential $156,799,726 $43,017 $156,756,709
Commercial 94,607,524 - 94,607,524

Commercial and industrial 30,211,443 - 30,211,443
Consumer 285,833 - 285,833

Total $281,904,526 $43,017 $281,861,509

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Real Estate:

Residential $ 152,211,564 $ 49,137 $ 152,162,427
Commercial 97,678,866 - 97,678,866

Commercial and industrial 19,791,430 - 19,791,430
Consumer 281,604 - 281,604

Total $ 269,963,464 $ 49,137 $ 269,914,327

In the normal course of business, the Company modifies loan terms for various reasons. These reasons may
include as a retention strategy to compete in the current interest rate environment, and to re-amortize or extend a
loan term to better match the loan’s payment stream with the borrower’s cash flows. A modified loan is consid-
ered to be a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) when the Company has determined that the borrower is trou-
bled (i.e. experiencing financial difficulties) and a concession is made by the Company that would not otherwise
be considered for a borrower or collateral with similar credit risk characteristics. The Company evaluates the
probability that the borrower will be in payment default on any of its debt in the foreseeable future without mod-
ification. To make this determination, the Company performs a global financial review of the borrower and loan
guarantors to assess their current ability to meet their financial obligations.

When the Company restructures a loan to a troubled borrower, the loan terms (i.e. interest rate, payment, amor-
tization period and/or maturity date) are modified in such a way to enable the borrower to cover the modified
debt service payments based on current financials and cash flow adequacy. If a borrower’s hardship is thought to
be temporary, then modified terms are only offered for that time period. Where possible, the Company obtains
additional collateral and/or secondary payment sources at the time of the restructure in order to put the Company
in the best possible position if the borrower is not able to meet the modified terms. To date, the Company has not
forgiven any principal as a restructuring concession. The Company will not offer modified terms if it believes that
modifying the loan terms will only delay an inevitable permanent default.

The CARES Act established two important provisions for homeowners with Federally backed mortgages. The first
provision was a 60-day foreclosure moratorium, and the second was a right to forbearance for borrowers who
attest to experiencing a financial hardship due to the COVID-19 emergency. Although the Company’s loans are
not Federally backed, the Company did provide mortgage assistance to ensure borrowers retain financial stability
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during the health pandemic crisis. The Company received and processed thirty-seven residential mortgage loans
totaling $6,099,057 that requested deferred loan payments or interest only payments during 2020. At
December 31, 2020, the majority of these loans returned to original contractual terms or have been paid off. One
residential mortgage loan totaling $93,037 remains in deferred status at December 31, 2020.

The Company also received and processed deferred payment or interest only requests for twenty-two commercial,
industrial, and commercial real estate loans totaling $20,987,806 during 2020. At December 31, 2020, all of these
loans have returned to original contractual terms, and there were no commercial and commercial real estate loans
that remain in deferred payment status.

All loans designated as TDRs are considered impaired loans and may be in either accruing or non-accruing status.
The Company’s policy for recognizing interest income on impaired loans does not differ from its overall policy for
interest recognition. Accordingly, the accrual of interest is discontinued when principal or interest is delinquent
for 90 days or more unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of collection. If the loan was accruing at the
time of the modification, then it continues to be in accruing status subsequent to the modification. Non-accrual
TDRs may return to accruing status when there has been sufficient payment performance for a period of at least
six months. TDRs are considered to be in payment default if, subsequent to modification, the loans are transferred
to non-accrual status. Loans may be removed from TDR status in the calendar year following the modification if
the interest rate at the time of modification was consistent with the interest rate for a loan with comparable credit
risk and the loan has performed according to its modified terms for at least six months.

There was one loan totaling $43,017 and $49,137 that was classified as a TDR at December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, this one TDR loan was classified as
non-accrual. There were no loan modifications made in 2020 and 2019 that resulted in a TDR classification at
year-end.

If a loan was considered to be impaired prior to modification as a TDR, then there is no impact on the ALLL as a
result of the modification because the loan was already being evaluated individually for impairment. If a loan was
not impaired prior to modification as a TDR, then there could be an impact on the ALLL as a result of the mod-
ification because of the movement of the loan from the pools of loans being evaluated collectively for impairment
to being evaluated individually for impairment. Since there were no new modifications in 2020 and 2019, there
was no additional ALLL analysis needed. The volume and type of TDR activity are considered in the assessment of
the local economic trends qualitative factor used in the determination of the ALLL for loans that are evaluated
collectively for impairment.

The Company did not charge off any loan that was classified as a TDR at December 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018 in either 2020 or 2019, respectively. There were no other TDRs that subsequently defaulted during the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instru-
ment for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit written is represented by the contract or
notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
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conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The following table identifies the contract or
notional amount of those instruments at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to grant loans $ 4,906,002 $ 9,182,225
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 25,594,582 22,744,842
Standby letters of credit 750,094 793,087

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any con-
dition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn
upon. The total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company eval-
uates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counter-
party. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and
income-producing commercial properties. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s fixed rate loan com-
mitments totaled $826,413 and $2,483,031, respectively.

Outstanding letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the per-
formance of a customer to a third party. The majority of these standby letters of credit expire within the next
twelve months. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending other loan commitments. The Company requires collateral supporting these letters of credit as deemed
necessary. Management believes that the proceeds obtained through a liquidation of such collateral would be
sufficient to cover the maximum potential amount of future payments required under the corresponding guaran-
tees. The current amount of the liability as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 for guarantees under standby letters of
credit issued is not material.

NOTE 7 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Major classifications of premises and equipment at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:

2020 2019

Land $ 2,105,339 $ 2,105,339
Buildings and leasehold improvements 8,319,117 7,844,528
Furniture and fixtures 5,271,356 4,909,218
Computer software 1,412,448 1,372,955

17,108,260 16,232,040
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,374,565) (9,963,940)

Total $ 6,733,695 $ 6,268,100

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations was $410,625 and $359,588 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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NOTE 8 - DEPOSITS

Time deposits include certificates of deposit in denominations of $250,000 or more. Such deposits aggregated
$6,261,159 and $16,571,607 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The following schedule represents the maturity of time deposits at December 31, 2020:

2021 $39,634,203
2022 2,963,963
2023 933,681
2024 519,815
2025 361,732

Total $44,413,394

Deposit overdrafts reclassified to loans receivable at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $400 and $993,
respectively.

NOTE 9 - BORROWED FUNDS AND AVAILABLE CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS

The Bank maintains a credit arrangement, which includes a revolving line of credit with the FHLB. Under this
credit arrangement, the Bank has a borrowing limit of approximately $151.5 million at December 31, 2020 that is
subject to annual renewal and typically incurs no service charges. Any loans or letters of credit generated with this
credit facility are secured by a blanket security agreement on outstanding residential mortgage loans, other real
estate related collateral and U.S. government agencies and mortgage-backed securities. As of December 31, 2020,
FHLB borrowed funds totaled $7.0 million. The borrowings had interest rates ranging from 1.47% to 2.99% and
maturity dates ranging from September 5, 2023 to November 22, 2024. As of December 31, 2019, FHLB borrowed
funds totaled $15.3 million. The borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 1.48% to 2.99% and mature at dates
ranging from February 28, 2020 to November 22, 2024. During 2020 and 2019, interest expense on FHLB borrow-
ings totaled $297,123 and $342,635, respectively. In December 2020, the Bank prepaid $4.7 million in FHLB bor-
rowings and incurred a prepayment fee of $147,189 and accounted for the transaction as early debt
extinguishment.

The Bank has borrowing access capabilities through the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) discount window. This
access allows the Bank to borrow money, usually on a short-term basis, to meet temporary liquidity needs. As of
December 31, 2020, the Bank had a borrowing capacity of approximately $1.9 million. Discount window borrow-
ings are fully secured through a pledge of mortgage-backed and U.S. government agency securities to the FRB of
Cleveland. The Bank had no FRB discount window borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The Bank has an established $10.0 million guidance line of credit with Truist Bank for repurchase and reverse
repurchase transactions and a $4.0 million guidance line of credit for the purchase of federal funds. The
$4.0 million guidance line of credit has no prescribed termination date and is not a committed facility, as Truist
Bank reserves the right to cancel the line at any time at its sole discretion. The Bank has $8.8 million, $7.5 million
and $5.0 million federal funds purchase lines of credit with Zions First National Bank, ACBB, and PNC Bank,
respectively, all of which have no prescribed termination date and are not committed facilities. Mars Bancorp Inc.
also has a credit facility line of credit of $3.0 million with ACBB. These facilities are intended to provide for short-
term liquidity needs for the Bank and Mars Bancorp Inc. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there
were no borrowings outstanding under these credit facilities.
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Borrowed funds have scheduled payments as follows:

2022 $ -
2023 1,234,950
2024 5,758,080
2025 -
2026 -

Total $6,993,030

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for federal income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is summarized as follows:

2020 2019

Current $307,170 $264,697
Deferred (56,170) 15,303

Total $251,000 $280,000

The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

Allowance for loan losses $495,885 $424,425
Deferred origination fees and costs 27,628 -
Post-retirement benefit plan 322,591 269,057
Non-accrual loan interest 4,059 3,643
Other - 113

Total Deferred Tax Assets 850,163 697,238

Net unrealized gain on securities 570,402 128,381
Deferred origination fees and costs - 28,086
Investment securities accretion 54,483 30,304
Depreciation 228,659 127,997

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 853,544 314,768

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset $ (3,381) $382,470

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits as defined by FASB ASC 740-10-25,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The Company does not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits to significantly increase within the next twelve months. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company
did not incur any interest or penalties associated with its tax position. Any amount, if applicable, would be
included as part of other non-operating expense. The Company is subject to federal income tax as well as a
capital-based state franchise tax.

The Company establishes a valuation allowance when it is more-likely-than-not that the Company will not be able
to realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets or when future deductibility is uncertain. Periodically, the need for
a valuation allowance is reviewed and adjusted based on management’s assessment of realizable deferred tax
assets.

The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2017.
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The total tax provision for financial reporting purposes differed from the amount computed by applying the
federal statutory income tax rate of 21% in 2020 and 2019 to income before income taxes. The differences are as
follows:

2020 2019

Tax at statutory rate $ 469,548 $ 443,710
Effect of tax-exempt income (215,706) (191,345)
Other (2,842) 27,635

Income Tax Expense $ 251,000 $ 280,000

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material legal proceedings to which the Company is party to except proceedings which arise in the
normal course of business and, in the opinion of management, will not have any material effect on the con-
solidated financial position of the Company.

The Company leases one office facility with a term of five years with multiple renewal options.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan
The Company has a non-contributory profit sharing and integrated contributory 401(k) plan in which eligible
employees participate. The Company is required to make a “safe harbor” contribution to the plan of at least 3% of
eligible employee’s compensation. This “safe harbor” contribution is fully vested and is referred to as a
non-elective contribution. The Company also makes a matching contribution equal to 100% of each participant’s
contributions up to a maximum of 3% of their salary. In addition, the Company may make discretionary con-
tributions to the profit-sharing plan as determined by the Board of Directors. The total plan contribution expense
for the years ended 2020 and 2019 was $280,000 and $267,804, respectively.

Post-Retirement Life Insurance Benefits
The Company provides term life insurance benefits for its retired employees. All employees may become eligible
for these benefits, provided they do not retire prior to reaching age sixty-five.

The projected accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation, which is unfunded, totaled $196,721 and $164,495
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. It is computed using various actuarially determined assumptions
regarding participant mortality, withdrawal and retirement rates, salary scales, discount rates and disabled
mortality rates. The Company has the right to amend or terminate these benefits.

The net periodic post-retirement benefit cost, which consists primarily of service costs and interest on the accumu-
lated benefit obligation, totaled $7,006 and $4,530 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. For 2020 and 2019, interest cost
was computed using a discount rate of 3.25% and 4.20%, respectively.

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan
The Company also maintains a nonqualified Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (“SERP”). The SERP was
established to provide a full level of retirement benefit for certain executives who otherwise would have been
bound by existing qualified plan limitations. As of December 31, 2020, the vested obligations of the SERP totaled
$1.2 million. The obligations under the retirement benefit portion of the plan are unfunded; however, the Com-
pany has purchased life insurance policies on the covered executives which are actuarially designed to offset the
annual expenses associated with the plan and will, given reasonable actuarial assumptions, offset all of the plan’s
costs during the life of the executives and provide a complete recovery of all plan costs at the executive’s death.
The Company is the sole owner and beneficiary of all policies. Net periodic expense for the SERP for 2020 and
2019 included in non-interest expense was $200,635 and $192,971, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 13 - OTHER EXPENSES

The following is an analysis of other expenses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Computer services $ 579,775 $ 519,977
ATM processing expense 271,275 291,150
Advertising 312,988 373,345
Director fees 221,610 216,900
Corporate insurance 85,534 91,976
Regulatory assessments 70,794 68,477
Telecommunications 107,078 112,986
Charitable contributions 76,698 55,809
Other 647,709 740,980

Total $2,373,461 $2,471,600

NOTE 14 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments; however,
there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments,
the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have realized in a
sales transaction on the dates indicated. The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of their
respective year-ends and have not been re-evaluated or updated for purposes of these financial instruments sub-
sequent to those respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to
the respective reporting dates may be different than the amounts reported at each year-end.

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation methods used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
as follows:

• Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities.

• Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

• Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measure-
ment and unobservable (i.e., supported with little or no market activity).

An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair
value hierarchy used at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

DECEMBER 31, 2020
U.S. government agencies and corporations $ 23,388,389 $ - $ 23,388,389 $ -
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 28,164,608 1,690,995 26,473,613 -
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations

guaranteed by U.S. government agencies 37,769,165 7,140,469 30,628,696 -
Mortgage-backed securities 21,304,976 - 21,304,976 -

Total $110,627,138 $8,831,464 $101,795,674 $ -

DECEMBER 31, 2019
U.S. government agencies and corporations $ 28,245,587 $ - $ 28,245,587 $ -
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 20,281,496 1,214,284 19,067,212 -
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations

guaranteed by U.S. government agencies 24,370,572 - 24,370,572 -
Mortgage-backed securities 28,348,925 - 28,348,925 -

Total $ 101,246,580 $ 1,214,284 $ 100,032,296 $ -

There were no financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following information should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Company, since
a fair value calculation is only provided for a limited portion of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Due to a wide
range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making the estimates, comparisons between
the Company’s disclosures and those of other companies may not be meaningful. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2020
and 2019:

Cash and Due from Banks and Interest-Bearing Deposits with Banks (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amount of cash and short-term instruments approximate their fair value.

Securities Available for Sale (Carried at Fair Value)
The fair value of securities available for sale is determined by obtaining quoted market prices in nationally recog-
nized securities exchanges (Level 1), or matrix pricing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technique used widely in
the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted market prices for the specific securities,
but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted prices. For certain securities which
are not traded in active markets or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, and such adjustments are generally based on available market evidence (Level 3). In
the absence of such evidence, management’s best estimate is used. Management’s best estimate consists of both
internal and external support on certain Level 3 investments. The entire Company’s available for sale securities
used valuation methodologies associated with Level 1 and Level 2 techniques at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Loans (Carried at Cost)
The loan portfolio fair value analysis consists of two segments: (1) a credit adjustment to reflect the estimated
adjustment to the carrying value of the loans due to credit-related factors; and, (2) a yield adjustment to reflect the
estimated adjustment to the carrying value of the loans due to a differential in yield between the portfolio loan
yields and estimated current market rate yields on loans with similar characteristics.

To determine a credit adjustment, the loan portfolio was divided into two segments: (1) performing loans and
(2) non-accrual loans. The credit adjustment was calculated on the portfolio of performing loans to account for
the estimated credit losses that could expect to be realized over the remaining life of the subject loan portfolio, in
the absence of a liquid market or direct quotes for loans comparable to the performing loans in the Company’s
loan portfolio. In this regard, three primary sources of information were considered in developing a market-based
credit adjustment: (1) The Company’s recent loan charge-off history for loans with similar collateral character-
istics and/or purposes; (2) an outsourced proprietary model that utilizes customized default, prepayment, and
severity rates at the loan level for real estate loans and at the cohort level for all other loan types (based on the
objective attributes of the loan with statistical performance variables in the peer marketplace); and, (3) The
Company’s internal allowance for loan and lease losses analysis for performing loans. The customized model pla-
ces an emphasis on two critical underwriting factors for the residential loan portfolio; credit score and loan to
value.

Loans classified as non-accrual were segregated and an estimated credit adjustment reserve level was assumed
from a third-party perspective.

To determine a yield adjustment, future cash flows were projected based on remaining term, weighted average
coupon, estimated months until maturity or repricing and an estimated rate of prepayments. Projected monthly
cash flows were then discounted to present value using a risk-adjusted market rate. The risk-adjusted market rate
reflects the approximate risk-adjusted market rate in existence at the valuation date for similar loans, taking into
account regional market conditions, including a premium applied, based on the Company’s assessment reflecting
the lack of marketability and liquidity of the loans relative to a base index. The fair value adjustment was then
calculated as the difference between the current principal balance and the present value of future cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mortgages Held for Sale (Carried at Lower of Cost or Fair Value)
The carrying amount of mortgages held for sale approximate their fair value.

Impaired Loans With Specific Loss Allowances (Carried at Fair Value)
The fair value of impaired loans with specific loss allowances is measured using the estimated fair market value of
the collateral less the estimated costs to sell. Fair value of the collateral is typically determined by appraisal.
Impaired loans are reviewed and evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted
accordingly.

Foreclosed Real Estate (Net Realizable Value)
The fair value of foreclosed real estate is measured using the estimated fair value of the collateral less the estimated
costs to sell. Fair value is typically determined by an appraisal. As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Company
had no foreclosed real estate.

Restricted Investments in Bank Stock (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amount of restricted investments in bank stock approximates fair value and considers the limited
marketability of such securities.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable approximates their fair value.

Deposits (Carried at Cost)
The fair value disclosed for non-interest and interest-bearing checking, statement and passbook savings and
money market accounts is, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., the
carrying amounts). Fair value for fixed-rate certificates of deposit is estimated using a discounted cash flow calcu-
lation that applies interest rates currently being offered in the marketplace on similar certificates to a schedule of
aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Borrowed Funds (Carried at Cost)
The fair value for borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates for instru-
ments for similar terms.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments (Disclosed at Cost)
The fair value of the Company’s off-balance sheet financial instruments (lending commitments and letters of
credit) is based on fees currently charged in the market to enter similar agreements, taking into account the
remaining term of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit score standing.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The carrying amount and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows at December 31,
2020 and 2019:

(Level 1)

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Quoted
Prices in
Active

Market for
Identical

Assets

(Level 2)
Significant

Other
Observable

Inputs

(Level 3)
Significant

Unobservable
Inputs

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 53,762,757 $ 53,762,757 $53,762,757 $ - $ -
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1,143,939 1,143,939 1,143,939 - -
Securities available for sale 110,627,138 110,627,138 8,831,464 101,795,674 -
Net loans (1) 278,858,407 281,784,755 - - 281,784,755
Restricted investments in bank stock 3,283,600 3,283,600 - 3,283,600 -
Accrued interest receivable 964,108 964,108 - 964,108 -

Financial Liabilities
Deposits $414,181,662 $414,370,698 $ - $414,370,698 $ -
Borrowed Funds 6,993,030 7,379,488 - 7,379,488 -
Accrued interest payable 27,155 27,155 - 27,155 -

Off-Balance Sheet Financial
Instruments
Commitments to extend credit $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Standby letters of credit - - - - -

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 18,383,514 $ 18,383,514 $ 18,383,514 $ - $ -
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1,100,950 1,100,950 1,100,950 - -
Securities available for sale 101,246,580 101,246,580 1,214,284 100,032,296 -
Net loans (1) 267,524,096 266,727,028 - - 266,727,028
Restricted investments in bank stock 3,252,500 3,252,500 - 3,252,500 -
Accrued interest receivable 934,094 934,094 - 934,094 -

Financial Liabilities
Deposits $ 352,546,799 $ 352,944,936 $ - $ 352,944,936 $ -
Borrowed Funds 15,253,909 15,433,785 - 15,433,785 -
Accrued interest payable 79,407 79,407 - 79,407 -

Off-Balance Sheet Financial
Instruments
Commitments to extend credit $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Standby letters of credit - - - - -

(1) In accordance with ASU 2016-01, the fair value of loans was measured using an exit price notion.
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NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS

Cash and Due from Banks
The Federal Reserve Board requires the Bank to maintain a reserve requirement against specified deposit
liabilities. On March 26, 2020, the reserve requirement ratios were set to zero percent by The Federal Reserve
Board. As of December 31, 2019, the Bank’s reserve requirement was $4,314,000. The Bank satisfied the reserve
requirement with a combination of vault cash and a depository account held with the FRB of Cleveland.

Dividends
Banks are subject to dividend payout restrictions, which generally limit the amount of dividends that can be paid
by an FDIC insured bank. In addition to the minimum risk-based requirements outlined below, banks must hold
common equity tier 1 capital in an amount greater than 2.50% of total risk-weighted assets (“the capital con-
servation buffer”) to avoid being subject to limits on capital distributions such as dividend payments. At
December 31, 2020, the Bank’s capital conservation buffer was 8.28%.

Capital Requirements
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by its federal and state banking agen-
cies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discre-
tionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and
certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts
and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings
and other factors.

The Bank is subject to the Basel III capital requirements as adopted by the FDIC. These requirements include a
required ratio for Total Risk Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 Risk Based Capital
(“CET 1”), and the Tier 1 Leverage ratio. There is also an additional capital conservation buffer over the required
capital ratios.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain mini-
mum amounts and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets, and of
Tier 1 capital to average assets. Under the Basel III reporting requirements, CET 1 risk-based capital with a
minimum capital requirement of 4.50% of risk weighted assets was established. Management believes, as of
December 31, 2020, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the most recent notifications from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well cap-
italized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios and the minimum amounts and ratios required for capital adequacy
purposes and to be well capitalized under the prompt corrective action provisions are as follows:

Actual
For Capital Adequacy

Purposes

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

Corrective Action
Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

DECEMBER 31, 2020
Total risk-based capital to

risk-weighted assets $40,939,000 16.28% ≥$20,117,840 ≥ 8.00% ≥ $25,147,300 ≥10.00%

Tier 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets 38,024,000 15.12% ≥ 15,088,380 ≥ 6.00% ≥ 20,117,840 ≥ 8.00%

CET 1 risk-based capital 38,024,000 15.12% ≥ 11,316,285 ≥ 4.50% ≥ 16,345,745 ≥ 6.50%

Tier 1 capital to average
assets 38,024,000 8.29% ≥ 18,348,040 ≥ 4.00% ≥ 22,935,050 ≥ 5.00%

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Total risk-based capital to

risk-weighted assets $ 39,582,000 16.02% ≥ $19,763,040 ≥ 8.00% ≥ $24,703,800 ≥10.00%

Tier 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets 37,006,000 14.98% ≥ 14,822,280 ≥ 6.00% ≥ 19,763,040 ≥ 8.00%

CET 1 risk-based capital 37,006,000 14.98% ≥ 11,116,710 ≥ 4.50% ≥ 16,057,470 ≥ 6.50%

Tier 1 capital to average
assets 37,006,000 9.14% ≥ 16,200,960 ≥ 4.00% ≥ 20,251,200 ≥ 5.00%
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Community Reinvestment Act Program

The Bank is dedicated to helping our local communities prosper. We are committed to serving the credit and
banking needs of the communities in which we do business. We recognize this requires us to take a proactive,
rather than a passive approach in determining and meeting community credit needs, including those of cred-
itworthy low- and moderate-income areas and individuals while helping to foster development in those area. We
are committed to working with community organizations to promote the availability of credit and other banking
services as needed in the communities that we serve. This philosophy of commitment to our stakeholders and
communities means we participate not to meet a requirement, but to fulfill a purpose.

From the boardroom to our banking centers, our purpose and goal is to help individuals, families and businesses
thrive. We accomplish this through:

• Delivery of consumer and commercial banking products and services to the communities we serve;

• Participating in and promoting grant programs to help meet the needs of low to moderate income borrowers
and helping individuals in our communities to become first-time homeowners;

• Meeting with community-based organizations to understand their needs;

• Providing financial education opportunities to students, customers, and the public;

• Commitment to the community through sponsorships, charitable donations, volunteerism and promoting
charitable organizations;

• Investment in the professional development of our staff and management to encourage active participation
in professional associations and encouraging involvement in the community; and

• Developing, implementing and measuring our CRA activities.

It is the policy of the Bank to make an active effort to determine the credit needs of our entire community, includ-
ing those of low and moderate income areas and individuals. The Bank will work to ensure that this is done by
identifying people who can speak to these needs, such as community organizations, government officials,
non-profit groups, businesses, trade associations and church and educational leaders.

The Bank will make an active effort to know the people in local organizations concerned with community
development and the needs of low and moderate income people. Our needs assessment contacts will be a regular
vehicle for ensuring good communication with them.

The Bank provides time for and encourages our team members to participate in charitable, civic and educational
events. Throughout the year, varying forms of outreach activities are planned and scheduled by management that
include offsite service days to campaigns for donations of goods or money. Management is also encouraged to
identify organizations and community centers of influence to connect, serve on boards and keep abreast of the
changes and needs of the community. Each year, dozens of organizations benefit from the expertise of Bank
participation and we look to continue this important purpose as we move forward.

Regulatory agencies perform periodic evaluations of the performance of banks under CRA. The Bank received a
“Satisfactory” rating for our last CRA Performance Evaluation dated June 24, 2019. Copies of the Performance
Evaluation are available from the Bank upon request or can be obtained at www.fdic.gov/hardcopy.html.
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Mars Bancorp and Mars Bank Board of Directors

Mars Bank Senior Leadership Team
Daniel F. Doyle 
Vice President 
Administrative Services

Mark D. Drenchko
Senior Vice President
Commercial and Retail Banking

James M. Hein 
Senior Vice President 
Controller

Lisa M. Kooker
Senior Vice President
Chief Credit Officer

Michael W. McGraw 
Senior Vice President 
Information Technology

Shawn R. Proper
Senior Vice President
Mortgage and Consumer Lending

Mars Bancorp and Mars Bank Executive Leadership Team
James V. Dionise 
President 
Chief Executive Officer

Michael J. Kirk 
Executive Vice President 
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secretary

Mark R. Schoen 
Senior Vice President 
Risk Management

Tracie L. Williams 
Vice President 
Human Resources

Dallas C. Hipple 
Emeritus

R. Bruce Mensch 
Emeritus 

Patricia Sutton van Buskirk 
Emeritus

James V. Dionise 
Mars Bancorp and Mars Bank

Kenneth R. Fleeson 
Lectromat, Inc.

Dianne Dobson Howard 
Lord Corporation - Retired

Gregory B. Mensch
Naval Nuclear Laboratory

Steven D. Thompson
Schneider Downs and Company

Janet L. van Buskirk Balentine 
Chairman 
Settlement Officer - Retired

J. Jay Thier 
Vice Chairman
Stirling Capital

Harry G. Austin, III 
James Austin Company - Retired

Dr. Daniel J. Cole 
Three Rivers Urology - UPMC

A Life of Community
Charles A. “Chuck” Norton 1931-2020 
Charles A. Norton epitomized the mission of Mars Bank. Chuck served the bank for 
over 60 years as a teller, cashier, manager, President and member of its Board of 
Directors. Chuck was truly about the community he loved. Born and raised in Mars, 
he began working at the bank while attending Carnegie Tech (now Carnegie Mellon 
University). He learned the banking business through his many positions at the bank, 
including branch manager in Richland, where he built many lifelong relationships. 

About the same time he started working at the bank, Chuck began playing in the 
Butler Symphony. He played clarinet in the symphony’s first concert and continued 
playing for over 60 years! Chuck credited his life in music and banking for 
connecting him with diverse people across our communities. 

Chuck served with many civic, charitable, and church organizations and boards, 
always focused on improving the community he loved. Most recently, he dedicated 
himself to preserving the history of the Mars community. The directors and officers 
of the bank and the community at large will miss Chuck. 
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